
Town of Lyman 
Select Board Regular Meeting Agenda 

Monday, June 17th, 2024 – Lyman Town Hall 
Welcome to the June 17th, 2024, Regular Meeting of The Lyman Select Board. 

This meeting is a public proceeding and is being recorded. 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

ITEM #1 SPECIAL OFFERS/ PRESENTATIONS 
a. Select Board Vote Chair, Vice Chair, Fire Commission member
b. Rustic Dreams – Special Amusement Permit Application
c. Welcome New Select Board Members

EXCECUTIVE SESSION 1.M.R.S.A §405 (C) Acquisition of real property – Tabled from last meeting 

ITEM #2 HEARING OF DELEGATIONS / PUBLIC INPUT 
a. Public Input – Public in attendance will have up to 5 minutes to address the Board.

Please use the podium to address the board and please be respectful of others
b. Mail  • York County Sherrif Report     •FEMA Letter

ITEM #3 MINUTES 
a. Review / Approve meeting minutes 6/3/2024

ITEM #4 SIGN WARRANTS 
a. Payroll Warrant #47 in the amount of $46,442.81
b. Accounts Payable Warrant #48 (FY2024) in the amount of $294,119.96

ITEM #5 UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
a. Franchise Agreement, Updates if any
b. Discussion from 4-22-24 Workshop, updating agenda format, board bylaws, social media policy, etc.
c. Discussion – Company Picnic/event
d. Discussion – Review process for donating/selling land to Goodwins Mills Cemetery Association
e. Discussion – Capital Improvement Plan

ITEM #6 DEPARTMENT AND COMMITTEE REPORTS 
a. Kennebunk Pond Committee – Updates re: Landscape Improvements
b. Fire Chief – All Hands
c. Planning Board – 3rd Quarter Report

ITEM #7 NEW BUSINESS 
a. S.M.A.S.H Field Use Request Form
b. Ordinance Review Committee: Re-Appointment Application
c. Review/ Approve Policy on Disbursements

OTHER 

ADJOURN 



ITEM #11: (b.) Rustic Dreams Public Hearing Special Amusement 
Permit





Lindsay Gagne
Highlight

Lindsay Gagne
Pencil

Lindsay Gagne
Pencil







Lindsay Gagne
Pencil







Lindsay Gagne
Pencil







Lindsay Gagne
Pencil













Welcome New Select Board Members! 

We’re excited to have you join our team and want to share with you updates and 
information to help get you acclimated to your new role. To help you settle in properly, we 
will include discussion topics to help familiarize you with standards and procedures, 
current projects and tasks at hand, select board roles, and any other helpful Q & A. Your 
peers and Town Manager are always here to help, and we strive to work together as a team. 

Discussion topics will include 

- Review of Policies and Code of Conduct. Copies are provided for review

Municipal Code of Ethics 

Select Board Code of Conduct 

Personnel Policy 

- Trainings

FOAA (Freedom Of Access Act) 

Municipal Officials Training 

Resources Available 

- Agendas and Agenda Packets

- Town Manager & Select Board Roles

- Select Board Budget Process

- Current tasks/ Updates

- Other

We may not cover everything during the initial meeting, and that’s okay. We can always 
continue the conversation into further meetings and the Town Manager is available to help 
answer questions and provide information.  

ITEM #11: (c.) Welcome Board Memberss



ITEM #22: (b.) Maill

































Town of Lyman 

Select Board Meeting Minutes 

June 3rd, 2024 – Lyman Town Hall 

Page 1 of 5 

These are summary minutes in nature only and a full video recording of the proceeding is available to view on our 
YouTube channel at https://www.youtube.com/@LymanTownHall/streams or visit our website: 

https://lyman-me.gov/committees/board-of-selectmen/agenda-and-minutes/ 

Selectboard members present: Rusty “Ralph” Blackington (Chair), Thomas Hatch (Vice Chair), Amber Swett, 
Victoria Gavel 
Selectboard members absent: Jessica Picard 

EXCECUTIVE SESSION 
1.M.R.S.A §405 (C) Acquisition of real property
GA director not in attendance. The board did not go into executive session.
Victoria Gavel – Motions to table the item till the next agenda.
Amber Swett – Seconds the motion. Motion passes: 4-0-0

ITEM #1 SPECIAL OFFERS/ PRESENTATIONS 

ITEM #2 HEARING OF DELEGATIONS / PUBLIC INPUT 
a. Public Input – Public in attendance will have up to 5 minutes to address the Board.

Please use the podium to address the board and please be respectful of others
Don Hernon – States he believes the term limits in the Charter that went in effect July 1, 2023 would
apply to candidates running for elected office in this years election. He requests to have the Town
Council review this.
David Alves – States he was on the charter commission, and he recalls members of the commission
discussed the intent of the term limits was not to make it retroactive; that the term limits would
become effective July 1, 2023.
Michelle Feliccitti – States she was on the charter commission, and she recalls members of the
commission discussed term limits and the intent was that the term limits would become effective
July 1, 2023, same as the new revised charter becoming effective. She states there was some
confusion that the Comprehensive Plan can only be voted on in a general election in November,
however for clarification this is not the case as the comprehensive plan and ordinances are two
different documents. The Comprehensive Plan can be voted on at any time the board chooses to
hold a town meeting.
Joe Wagner – States he believes the term limits in the new revised charter would become effective
July 1, 2023.

b. Mail    •Goodwin Mills Cemetery
Victoria Gavel – Suggests the board have the damage assessed and table the item till the next
agenda.
Thomas Hatch – Suggests if the Town sells the former Rhodes Hall property to the cemetery
association, they could manage the tree damage themselves.

ITEM #3 MINUTES 
a. Review / Approve meeting minutes 5/20/2024

Tomas Hatch – Motions to approve. Victoria Gavel seconds the motion. Motion passes: 4-0-0

DRAFT
ITEM #3: (a.) Minutess

https://www.youtube.com/@LymanTownHall/streams
https://lyman-me.gov/committees/board-of-selectmen/agenda-and-minutes/


Town of Lyman 

Select Board Meeting Minutes 

June 3rd, 2024 – Lyman Town Hall 

Page 2 of 5 

ITEM #4 SIGN WARRANTS 
a. Payroll Warrant #45 in the amount of $28,781.94

Victoria Gavel – Motions to approve. Amber Swett seconds, Motion passes: 4-0-0
b. Accounts Payable Warrant #46 (FY2024) in the amount of $652,648.45

Victoria Gavel – Motions to approve. Thomas Hatch seconds. Motion passes: 4-0-0
Victoria Gavel – Inquires about the invoices submitted by KCB landscaping for the storm damage
clean up at Bunganut Park
Lindsay Gagne – Explains the FEMA funding portal has just been opened for municipalities to submit
requests for reimbursement. The federal government will cover 75%, the State will cover 15% and
the Town will be responsible for the remaining 10%. After collecting invoices from multiple vendors
that provided services for damages caused by the storm, the total amount being asked for at this
time is $114,145.

ITEM #5 UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
a. Franchise Agreement, Updates if any – No new updates at this time.
b. Discussion from 4-22-24 Workshop, updating agenda format, board bylaws, social media policy, etc.

Victoria Gavel – Suggests tabling this item until after the election, in the event there might be new
board members on. Discussion, the board agrees with this suggestion.

c. Transfer Station – Proposal for Camera Equipment
Lindsay Gagne – States the proposal has been updated to reflect details of managed services and
the monthly cost for each device. Remote managed services are optional, however, if devices are
not properly maintained, then they will break down without having software updates and routine
maintenance. For example, there are cameras currently at the Transfer Station that have not been
managed and they’re no longer functioning. Also included in the proposal are some notes for
FY2025 budget and the available funding for any added monthly services. When doing an initial
reconnaissance, we could find there is conduit coming up by the garage, which if we can determine
where this goes, we may be able to eliminate having to pay extra for aerial work.
Victoria Gavel – Suggests reaching out to Ken Burr on the conduit question.
Thoams Hatch – Makes a motion to go with Option 2 for cameras and equipment at the Transfer
Station and to take up to $5,205 out of the Transfer Station Reserve.
Ralph Blackington – Seconds the motion.
Amber Swett – States she would suggest taking the funds out of Capital Improvement Reserve.
Thomas Hatch – Amends his motion to take up to $5,205 out of the Capital Improvement Reserve.
Ralph Blackington – Re-seconds the motion.
Motion passes: 4-0-0

ITEM #6 DEPARTMENT AND COMMITTEE REPORTS 
a. Land Study – Report

David Alves – Presents his report for the Land Study, submitted in the Agenda Packet. The forester
working for the Town has grouped together ten properties that would be easy to access and start
with timber harvesting. If the board were to proceed further, the forester would assist with the RFP
process and would monitor the timber harvesting to ensure the Towns benefit. The forester would
be paid out of the timber harvest revenue. Of this grouping there is approximately 200 acres of land
which conservatively is estimated to be approximately 80 harvestable acres. The forester also gave a
conservative estimate that the Town could get $500 per acre, and they would take 15-20% off the
timber harvest to cover their services. This estimates roughly $25,000 in revenue for the Town. After
harvesting, they would ensure mulching is completed to leave some trails in place.
Victoria Gavel – Asks about the land locked parcels, if they can be sold first.

DRAFT



Town of Lyman 

Select Board Meeting Minutes 

June 3rd, 2024 – Lyman Town Hall 

Page 3 of 5 

Lindsay Gagne – Explains some of the land locked parcels abut other parcels currently owned by the 
Town that have road frontage and we could put in deeded access making the property more 
valuable. Also, the board could harvest some of the lots to collect that revenue then consider selling 
after the harvest, to collect land sale revenue.  
Amber Swett – Suggests selling the former Rhodes Hall property to the cemetery association where 
there is no timber harvest available or other uses for that property. Discussion, the board agrees.  
Amber Swett – Motions to start the process of giving that land to the cemetery association.  
Victoria Gavel – Seconds the motion. Motion passes: 4-0-0 
The board discusses reviewing the forester’s recommendation of the 10 parcels grouped for timber 
harvest. Lindsay will forward that from the forester.  
Amber Swett – Motions to move forward with the RFP for timber harvesting for the ten parcels 
process as recommended by the Forester.  
Ralph Blackington – Seconds the motion. Motion passes: 4-0-0 

b. Town Hall Expansion – Report
David Alves – Presents a report on the Town Hall Expansion, submitted in the agenda packet.
Custom Concepts, the engineers, have conducted a study to determine the best practical location
for the expansion. Going behind the building presents an issue with the existing stream and building
an additional second floor level presents an issue as the current building may not support a second
level. The engineers have designed a preliminary proposal of an expansion of the building coming off
the Eastern side of the building, however this will encroach on the 40-foot side set back
requirement. After speaking with the neighbor owning the church building, they were agreeable in
doing an equal land swap, as depicted in the preliminary plans, that would allow the Town to meet
the setback requirements. The expansion plan would also include setting aside some space for the
Historical Society, joining a walkway for shared parking with the neighbors, keeping the walkway to
the library intact, and leaving some available space for additional storage and/or office space. Next
steps would include a contingency agreement with the neighbor and a Town Vote for the land swap
Victoria Gavel – States the board should also consider setting aside land from the land study in the
event the Town Hall may need a new location for continued expansion in the future.
Thomas Hatch – Motions to go to the next steps to survey the land swap option and bring to the
Town Voters.
Amber Swett – Seconds the motion. Motion passes: 4-0-0

c. Fire Chief – All Hands – Reviewed in Agenda packet
d. Treasurer – Expense Report – Reviewed in Agenda Packet
e. Bunganut Park Committee – Report

Michelle Feliccitti – States the Committee is developing a plan to split up the Pines into three
separate rental areas in an effort to generate more revenues for the Park. While doing a walkabout,
they noticed the picnic tables need to be replaced at the Pines. Some ideas they are looking into for
park improvements include adding ramps going into the water to help with erosion control, clearing
up dead trees in the pines area, mitigating water seepage on lakeside field area, adding porta
potties for the pine’s rentals, considering parking options for the pines, and replanting trees and
other native plants.
Discussion with the board to consider other options on water runoff control from the upper parking
area and having the Fire Departments input on any safety issues there.

ITEM #7 NEW BUSINESS 
a. Committee Re-Appointments Applications (Terms that are up June 30th)

o Cemetery Committee
Thomas Hatch – Motions to appoint Priscilla Miles to the Cemetery Committee
Amber Swett – Seconds the motion. Motion passes: 4-0-0

DRAFT



Town of Lyman 

Select Board Meeting Minutes 

June 3rd, 2024 – Lyman Town Hall 

Page 4 of 5 

o IT Committee
Thomas Hatch – Motions to appoint Bill Single to the IT committee
Victoria Gavel – Seconds the motion. Motion passes: 4-0-0

o Zoning Board of Appeals
Thomas Hatch – Motions to appoint Thomas Larned to the ZBA
Victoria Gavel – Seconds the motion. Motion passes: 4-0-0
Thomas Hatch – Motions to appoint Arthur Dumas to the ZBA
Victoria Gavel – Seconds the motion. Motion passes: 4-0-0

o Ordinance Review Committee
Thomas Hatch – Motions to appoint Peggy Macdonald to the ORC
Victoria Gavel – Seconds the motion. Motion passes: 4-0-0

o Parks & Rec Committee
Thomas Hatch – Motions to appoint Holly Wooldridge to Parks & Recs Committee
Victoria Gavel – Seconds the motion. Motion passes: 4-0-0

b. Planning Board – upcoming vacancy (June 30th) PB recommendation
Amber Swett – Motions to go with the Town Manager’s recommendation to keep Bill Single as an
alternate member until training has been completed.
Thomas Hatch – Seconds the motion. Motion Passes: 4-0-0
Victoria Gavel – States she reserves the right to vote either way and acquiring trainings will not
guarantee appointment

c. Eco Maine Representative Re-Appointment
Discussion, Amber wishes to continue as ECO Maine Rep. She is looking into working with ECO ME to
pilot some ideas for public education on recycling with voluntary competitions citizens can
participate in.
Thomas Hatch – Motions to appoint Amber Swett as the ECO Maine Representative.
Victoria Gavel – Seconds the motion. Motion passes: 3-1-0 (Thomas Hatch, Ralph Blackington,
Victoria Gavel in favor; Amber Swett abstains)

d. Discussion – Company Picnic/event
Victoria Gavel – Recommends the board coordinate a function where they cook and serve the food
to employees and suggests inviting volunteers. Perhaps a night in the park with food trucks.
Lindsay Gagne – Suggests an event at the Pines potentially late August or Mid-September. The
board budgeted $1,000 for FY25.
Thomas Hatch – Discussion on ideas on making it a community event but also suggests starting
small for the first year and growing into a bigger event.
Discussion: surveying the employees or polling ideas on what types of entertainment, games, etc
would be preferred. Potential a Saturday date, between 2pm – 5pm. The board agrees to table this
till next meeting and determine a set date.

e. Discussion – Designee for pole permits.
Thomas Hatch – Motions to designate the Code Enforcement Officer as the Pole Permit Designee
Ralph Blackington – Seconds the motion. Motion passes: 4-0-0

f. Special Amusement Permit Application/ On-Premise Liquor License Renewal – Rustic Dreams
Lindsay Gagne – States there have been no complaints on record of the business and would
recommend the board do a public hearing. The CEO has a copy of the Special Amusement
Application and will coordinate any inspections needed.
Discussion: The board has scheduled a public hearing on June 17, 2024 at 6:00pm at the Town Hall.
DRAFT



Town of Lyman 

Select Board Meeting Minutes 

June 3rd, 2024 – Lyman Town Hall 

Page 5 of 5 

OTHER 

Victoria Gavel – States there is a poison ivy patch by the signs placed at Kennebunk Pond Beach. 

ADJOURN 

Thomas Hatch – Motions to adjourn. Amber Swett seconds. Motion passes: 4-0-0 

__________________________________________ 
Jessica Picard 

__________________________________________ 
David Alves 

_____________________________________________ 

Amber Swett 

_____________________________________________ 

Joseph Wagner 

_____________________________________________ 

Victoria Gavel

I, Lindsay Gagne, Town Manager of the Town of Lyman, Maine, do hereby certify that the foregoing document consisting of 5 pages 
are the original minutes of the Select Board Meeting date June 3rd, 2024 

_____________________________________ 

Lindsay Gagne

DRAFT



ITEM #4: (a.) Payroll Warrant









ITEM #4: (b.) AP Warrant





















ITEM #5: (b.) Discussion from 4/22/24 Workshopp









SAMPLE



SAMPLE



SAMPLE



SAMPLE



SAMPLE



SAMPLE



SAMPLE



SAMPLE



SAMPLE



SAMPLE



SAMPLE



SAMPLE



Effective Date:  July 30, 2013

EMPLOYEE ACKNOWLEDGEMENT 

1. SOCIAL MEDIA POLICIES & GUIDELINES – Department; Employee

2. INFORMATION SYSTEMS ACCEPTABLE USE AGREEMENT - Revised

I, the undersigned employee of the City of South Portland, have been provided a copy of 

the  a.) City of South Portland Employee Use of Social Media Policy & Guidelines, dated July 

30, 2013;  and, b.) City of South Portland Social Media Use Policy for Departments, dated July 

30, 2013; and, c.) Information Systems Acceptable Use Agreement, Revised July 30, 2013.  I 

agree to review and fully comply with each of these policies.  I accept and understand the terms 

of these policies and agree to abide by all terms contained in it. 

Employee 

Print Name:  _________________________ 

Employee Signature: 

____________________________________ 

Date 

SAMPLE



Effective Date:  July 9, 2013

City of South Portland 

Employee Use of Social Media Policy & Guidelines 

At the City of South Portland (the “City”), we understand that social media can be a fun and 

rewarding way to share your life and opinions with family, friends and co-workers around the 

country.  However, use of social media also presents certain risks and carries with it certain 

responsibilities.  To assist you in making responsible decisions about your use of social media, 

we have established this Policy & Guidelines for appropriate use of social media. 

POLICY & GUIDELINES 

In the rapidly expanding world of electronic communication, social media can mean many 

things.  Social media includes all means of communicating or posting information or content of 

any sort on the Internet, including to your own or someone else’s web log or blog, journal or 

diary, personal web site, social networking or affinity web site, web bulletin board or a chat 

room, whether or not associated or affiliated with the City, as well as any other form of 

electronic communication. 

Ultimately, you are solely responsible for what you post online.  Before creating online content, 

consider some of the risks and rewards that are involved.  What you write or post is public, and 

will be so for a long time.  It will also be spread to large audiences without your knowledge or 

permission.  Recognize that the instantaneous, yet permanent, nature of social media can pose 

risk without effective controls. 

Know and follow the rules 

Carefully read this Policy & Guidelines, the City’s Personnel Policy, including the provisions on 

Employee Conduct, No Discrimination, Workplace Violence, Sexual and Anti-Harassment 

Prevention and Anti-Retaliation, and the City’s Information Systems Acceptable Use Agreement, 

and ensure your postings are consistent with this Policy & Guidelines.  Inappropriate postings 

that may include discriminatory remarks, harassment, and threats of violence or similar 

inappropriate or unlawful conduct will not be tolerated. 

POLICY FOR ALL SOCIAL MEDIA COMMUNICATIONS 

Use of social media on work time/equipment 

Use social media while on work time or on equipment we provide must be work-related and 

approved by your Department Head or Supervisor; provided, however, that use of social media 

on work time or work equipment for personal reasons may be approved by your Department 

Head or Supervisor on a very limited basis and provided that it doesn’t interfere with normal 

work.  Be advised that employees have no right to privacy with respect to personal use of social 

media or personal social media accounts accessed by means of City equipment or with respect to 

personal social media content so accessed.  Employees should not expect or assume privacy or 

confidentiality with respect to any such personal social media use or social media content. SAMPLE



2 

Use of City name/e-mail address 

Personal social media account names or e-mail names should not be tied to the City.  Do not use 

a City e-mail address to register on social networks, blogs or other online tools utilized for 

personal use.  For those employees who use a City e-mail address for registration with social 

networks, blogs or other online tools utilized for personal use as of the date of adoption of this 

Policy & Guidelines.  

Protection of private and confidential information 

Many City employees have access to private and confidential information that must be actively 

guarded from publication.  When using social media, all City employees are expected to actively 

protect private and/or confidential information.  A good rule of thumb is that if you are not sure 

if the information is protected as confidential by law, ask before you post. 

Guidelines for all communications (official and personal) 

All City employees have a responsibility to help communicate accurate and timely information 

to the public in a professional manner.  Any employee who identifies a mistake in reporting 

should bring the error to the attention of his or her Supervisor or other appropriate staff.  

Employees must provide good customer service to both the public and co-workers.  Regardless 

of whether the communication is in the employee’s official City role or in a personal capacity, 

employees must comply with all laws relating to intellectual property rights, including, without 

limitation, trademark, copyright and software use.  Employees must also follow all City policies 

that may apply. 

Be mindful of public record and record retention laws 

Maine’s Freedom of Access Act (“Right-to-Know” law), State Archives Advisory Board Rules 

for Disposition of Local Government Records and e-discovery laws apply to social media 

content.  Therefore, content must be able to be managed, stored and retrieved to comply with 

these laws. 

Violations 

Users who violate this Policy may be subject to discipline, up to and including termination of 

employment.  This Policy is not intended to violate and will not be enforced in violation of 

federal, state or local law. 

GUIDELINES FOR PERSONAL USE OF SOCIAL MEDIA 

Some personal communications of employees may reflect on the City, especially if employees 

are commenting on City business, policies or fellow employees.  These guidelines apply to 

personal communications involving various forms of social media.  To assist you in making 

responsible decisions about your use of social media, we have established these guidelines for 

appropriate personal use of social media. 

Be respectful 

Always be fair and courteous to fellow employees and people who work on behalf of the City.  

Also, keep in mind that you are more likely to resolve work related complaints by speaking 

directly with your co-workers or your Supervisor than by posting complaints to a social media 

outlet.  Nevertheless, if you decide to post complaints or criticism, avoid using statements, 

SAMPLE



3 

photographs, video or audio that reasonably could be viewed as malicious, obscene, threatening 

or intimidating, that disparage fellow employees and people who work on behalf of the City, or 

that might constitute harassment or bullying.  Examples of such conduct might include offensive 

posts meant to intentionally harm someone’s reputation or posts that could contribute to a hostile 

work environment on the basis of race, sex, disability, religion or any other status protected by 

law. 

Be honest and accurate 

Make sure you are always honest and accurate when posting information or news, and if you 

make a mistake, correct it quickly.  Be open about any previous posts you have altered.  

Remember that the Internet archives almost everything; therefore, even deleted postings can be 

searched.  Do not post any information or rumors that you know to be false about the City, its 

officials, fellow employees or people working on behalf of the City. 

Post only appropriate and respectful content 

● Maintain the confidentiality of information made confidential by law to which you

have access solely as a result of your employment with the City.

● Do not create a link from your blog, website or other social networking site to the

City’s website without identifying yourself as a City employee.

● Express only your personal opinions.  Never represent yourself as a spokesperson

for the City.  If the City is a subject of the content you are creating, be clear and

open about the fact that you are an employee and make it clear that your views do

not represent those of the City, its officials, fellow employees or people working on

behalf of the City.  If you do publish a blog or post online related to the work you do

or subjects associated with the City, make it clear that you are not speaking on

behalf of the City.  It is best to include a disclaimer such as “The postings on this

site are my own and do not necessarily reflect the views of my employer, the City of

South Portland.”

● For safety and security reasons, City employees are cautioned not to display City

logos, uniforms, or similar identifying items on personal web pages.

Be mindful of public record and record retention laws 

Maine’s Freedom of Access Act (“Right-to-Know” law), State Archives Advisory Board Rules 

for Disposition of Local Government Records and e-discovery laws apply to social media 

content.  Beware that even your personal social media content may be treated as a “public 

record” if it has “been received or prepared for use in connection with the transaction of public 

or governmental business or contains information relating to the transaction of public or 

governmental business.” See 1 M.R.S.A. § 402(3). 

FOR MORE INFORMATION 

If you have questions or need further guidance on this Policy & Guidelines, please contact your 

Department Head, your Supervisor, the Information Technology Director or the Human 

Resources Director. SAMPLE



4 

EMPLOYEE ACKNOWLEDGEMENT 

SOCIAL MEDIA POLICY & GUIDELINES 

I, the undersigned employee of the City of South Portland, have been provided a copy of 

the City of South Portland Employee Use of Social Media Policy & Guidelines and understand 

its contents fully.  I accept and understand the terms of the policy and agree to abide by all terms 

contained in it. 

Employee 

Print Name:  _________________________ 

Date 

SAMPLE



Information Systems Acceptable Use Agreement 

Policy #:   27 Effective Date: 2/1/07 Change Control #: 

ISO/IEC 17799:2005 
Reference:  

6.1.5, 7.1.3, 8.1.3, 10.8.4, 11.3.2, 11.7.1, 11.7.2, 15.1.5 

Policy Overview: 
The purpose of this policy is to protect the assets of the organization by 
clearly informing workforce members of their roles and responsibilities for 
utilizing the organizations information technology assets and infrastructure. 

The City of South Portland is committed to protecting the information assets of our residents, our employees, our 
partners and the City itself from illegal or damaging actions by individuals, either knowingly or unknowingly. Our 
intention for publishing our Information System Code of Conduct is not to impose restrictions that are contrary to 
our established culture of openness, trust and integrity but to ensure that we honor the public trust. 

The 21st Century environment of connected technologies offers many opportunities to malicious or unknowing 
people from all over the world to anonymously attack, damage and corrupt vital public information; and to disrupt 
our ability to communicate effectively and accomplish the mission of our organization. Effective security is a civic 
responsibility, and a team effort involving the participation and support of every employee and affiliate who deals 
with information and/or information systems. It is the responsibility of every employee and affiliate to know, 
understand and adhere to these policies, standards, procedures, and guidelines, and to conduct their activities 
accordingly. 

Distribution: 
Current employees shall receive and sign a copy of this agreement annually.  New employees shall receive a copy 
of this agreement upon hire. Any employee who does not sign the acceptable use statement will have all access to 
information systems immediately removed and may have their employment terminated. 

Code of Conduct Agreement: 

As an employee of the City of South Portland, I agree to protect the confidential information with which our 
residents entrust us in accordance with all Information Security Policies of the City of South Portland. 

I certify that I have read and fully understand the Information Systems Code of Conduct set forth in this document. 
I understand and acknowledge my obligations and responsibilities.  

I understand that should I become aware of any misuse of the City’s systems, I am obligated to inform a member 
of management immediately. 

I understand that the City reserves the right to monitor system activity and usage. My signature on this document 
means I have consented to this monitoring. 

I understand that electronic files created, sent, received, or stored on Information Systems owned, leased, 
administered, or otherwise under the custody and control of the City are not private and may be accessed City IS 
employees, management, or auditors at any time without my knowledge.   

I understand that the City owns the email system and the information transmitted and stored within it.  Employees 
shall have no expectation of privacy or confidentiality in any of their emails. 

I understand that the City monitors Internet usage and that employees shall have no expectation of privacy or 
confidentiality for any information accessed via and/or published to the Internet via City information resources. 

I further understand that violation of these policies is subject to disciplinary action up to and including termination 
without prior warning or notice.  Additionally, individuals may be subject to civil and criminal prosecution.  

Acknowledged and agreed to by: _______________________________________________________ 
 Employee Signature     Date 

NAME (Printed):   ______________________________________________________ 
Please complete and send this form to HR. 

SAMPLE



Information Systems Acceptable Use Agreement 

January 2007 

Please Retain this Document in a Convenient to Consult Location 

SAMPLE



Acceptable use of Information Resources policy 
These rules are in place to protect our residents, our employees and the City.  Inappropriate use of 
our Information Resources exposes the City to risks including virus attacks, compromise of network 

systems and services, and legal issues.  City resources are made available to employees to conduct 

official business.  City information resources are not to be used to conduct personal business, business 
related to outside employment or for personal benefit.  System users are advised that there should be 
no expectation of privacy when using any City information resources.  Every system user is expected 
to comply with this policy.   

In order to insure safety and security of information assets: 

1.1 Users must not share their user account(s), passwords, Personal Identification Numbers (PIN), 
Security Tokens (i.e. Smartcard), or similar information or devices used for identification and 
authentication purposes. 

1.2 Users must not attempt to access any data or programs contained on information systems for 
which they do not have authorization or explicit consent. 

1.3 In the event that a system user is sent, delivered or inadvertently accesses inappropriate or 
prohibited material, or the material contains confidential information that the user does not 
have “need-to-know” access to, or authority to receive; the user is required to immediately 
secure the material from view and notify their supervisor.   

1.4 Users must not make unauthorized copies of copyrighted software. 

1.5 Users must not install software, shareware or freeware software including games. 

1.6 Users must not attempt to circumvent approved anti-virus software or make any changes to the 
accepted configuration of anti-virus software. 

1.7 Users must not download, install or run security programs or utilities that reveal or exploit 

weaknesses in the security of a system. 

1.8 Users must report any weaknesses in computer security, any incidents of possible misuse or 
violation of this agreement to their supervisor.  

1.9 The distribution of any information through the Intranet, Internet, computer-based services, 

email, and messaging systems is subject to the scrutiny of the City and or its auditors.  The City 
reserves the right to determine the suitability of this information. 

2. Internet Use
In addition to being an excellent resource for information, and a revolutionary way to communicate
with the world; The Internet is a rapidly changing and volatile place which can accurately be referred

to as “The Wild”. These policies are intended to provide guidance and protection, while still making
available this useful business tool.

The following rules apply when using the Internet: 

2.1 Users must not - upload, download, or otherwise knowingly access or transmit in any fashion 
any confidential records of the City, its residents, or vendors without adequate authority to do 

so.  Employees must know what is and is not acceptable based on their position and function 
within the City.  Without limiting the foregoing, Users must be aware of and comply with City 
of South Portland’s privacy policy, and policies and procedures for safeguarding information.

2.2 All authorized confidential information transmitted via the Internet – email, FTP, or otherwise, 
must be encrypted or secured in a manner approved by the City management. 

2.3 Users must not knowingly visit Internet sites that contain obscene, hateful or other 

objectionable materials; send or receive any material, whether by email, voice mail, 
memoranda or oral conversation, that is obscene, defamatory, harassing, intimidating, 
offensive, discriminatory, or which is intended to annoy, harass, or intimidate another person. 

2.4    Users must not solicit business for personal gain or profit via the City Information Services 

infrastructure. 

SAMPLE



2.5 Users must not use the Internet or email for any illegal purpose. 

2.6 Users must not use the Internet or email for offensive or vulgar messages such as messages 

that contain sexual or racial comments or for any messages that do not conform to the City’s 
policies against harassment and discrimination. 

2.7 Users must not download or install any software or electronic files without the prior written 
approval of the IS Director. 

2.8 Users must not access the Internet via any means other than a City approved connection. 

2.9 Users must not change any security settings in Internet Explorer unless under the direction of 
the IS department. 

2.10 Users must not participate in unauthorized activities. 

2.11 Users must not represent personal opinions as those of the City or purport to represent the 

City when not authorized to do so. 

2.12 Users must not upload, download, or otherwise transmit commercial software or any 
copyrighted materials belonging to parties outside of the City. 

2.13 Users must not intentionally interfere with the normal operation of the network, including the 
propagation of computer viruses and sustained high volume network traffic, which 
substantially hinders others in their use of the network. 

2.14 Users must not reveal or publicize confidential or proprietary information which includes, but is 
not limited to:  financial information, confidential client information, marketing strategies and 
plans, databases and any information contained therein, client lists, computer software source 
codes, computer/network access codes, and business relationships. 

3. Email Use

Email use has become a standard method of communication.  These policies are intended to offer rules
of usage which will protect our information.  Email use is subject to the following policies:

3.1 The City owns the email system and the information transmitted and stored within it. Employees 

should have no expectations of privacy. 

3.2 All confidential information sent via email must use a designated secure email system. 

3.3 The following activities are prohibited: 

3.3.1 Sending email that is intimidating or harassing. 
3.3.2 Using email for purposes of political lobbying or campaigning. 
3.3.3 Violating copyright laws by inappropriately distributing protected works. 

3.3.4 Posing as anyone other than oneself when sending or receiving email, except when 
authorized to send messages for another when serving in an administrative support 
role.  

3.4 The following activities are prohibited because they impede the functioning of network 
communications and the efficient operations of electronic mail systems: 

3.4.1 Sending or forwarding chain letters. 
3.4.2 Sending unsolicited messages to large groups except as required to conduct agency 

business. 
3.4.3 Sending excessively large messages. 
3.4.4 Sending or forwarding email that is likely to contain computer viruses. 

3.5 Electronic mail users must not give the impression that they are representing, giving opinions, 

or otherwise making statements on behalf of the City. 

3.6 Individuals must not send, forward or receive confidential or sensitive information through 
non-City email accounts.  Examples of non-City email accounts include, but are not limited to, 
Hotmail, Yahoo mail, AOL mail, and email provided by other Internet Service Providers (ISP).  

SAMPLE



3.7 Individuals must not send, forward, receive or store confidential or sensitive information 
utilizing non-City accredited mobile devices.  Examples of mobile devices include, but are not 
limited to, Personal Data Assistants, Palm Pilots, Blackberries, iPods, two-way pagers and 

cellular telephones. 

3.8 Email messages are not private but are property of the City. The City may print and review 
email messages sent and received via an employee’s email account.  

3.9 Internet sites accessed from City resources are not private and the City may review the sites 
visited. 

4. Incidental Use of Information Resources
As a convenience to the user community, incidental use of Information Resources is permitted.  Only
brief and occasional use is considered to be incidental.  All rules that apply to official use of
information resources also apply to incidental usage as outlined above.

The following additional restrictions on incidental use apply: 

Incidental personal use of electronic mail, internet access, fax machines, printers, copiers, and 
so on, is restricted to approved users; it does not extend to family members or other 
acquaintances.  

Incidental use must not result in direct costs to the City. 

Incidental use must not interfere with the normal performance of an employee’s work duties. 

Incidental use of information resources must not involve solicitation in any form, must not be 
associated with any outside business or employment activity, and must not potentially 
embarrass or offend the City, its Council Members, its Residents, or its Employees. 

All messages, files and documents – including personal messages, files and documents – 

located on information resources are considered to be owned by the City and may be subject 

to open records requests, and may be accessed in accordance with this policy. 

5. Passwords
All of the work we are doing at the City of South Portland to secure the confidential information will be
ineffective if the most important aspect of Information Security, the users of our information

resources, have weak passwords.  Though we recognize that it is inconvenient at first, having strong
passwords is the most important part of your participation.  We would like to think of passwords as a
“shared secret” between you and the City information resources.

The following policies apply to password use: 

5.1 All passwords must be constructed and implemented according to the City’s accepted and 

approved standards. 

5.2 User account passwords must not be divulged to anyone, at any time, for any reason. 

5.3 If passwords are forgotten, disclosed, or if the security of a password is in doubt, the 
password must be changed immediately. 

5.4 Administrators may not circumvent the Password Policy for the sake of ease of use. 

5.5 Users must not circumvent password entry with auto logon, password remembering features, 
embedded scripts or hard-coded passwords in client software. 

5.6 Computing devices must not be left unattended without enabling a password protected 

screensaver, locking the workstation or completely logging off of the device.  

5.7 In the event passwords are found or discovered on documents of any kind, the following steps 
must be taken: 

5.7.1 Take possession of the passwords and protect them, 

SAMPLE



5.7.2 Report the discovery to the Helpdesk, 
5.7.3 Transfer the passwords to an authorized person as directed by the Helpdesk. 

6. Remote Computing

Laptop computers, PDA’s, and other portable computing devices are a great convenience and
becoming more and more a part of doing business.  They also come with many risks including ease of
theft, operation in unsecured environments, and easily intercepted wireless communications.  In order
to protect our valuable information; it is important that users of portable computing devices follow
these rules of use:

6.1 Only City approved portable computing devices may be used to access City information 

resources. 

6.2 Portable devices are assigned to individual employees.  Portable devices should not be used by 
any employee other than one to whom the device is assigned.  

6.3 Physical security of portable computing devices is the responsibility of the user. 

6.4 Lost or stolen portable devices must be reported to the IS department immediately. 

6.5 Confidential / sensitive information must not be saved onto portable computing devices. 

6.6 Remote connection to the City’s network resources must only be done via approved access 
methods (i.e. VPN). 

6.7 When left unattended, portable computing devices shall not be left logged into the City’s 
network and/or have implemented a password protected screen saver to prevent unauthorized 
access. 

7. Media Handling

Removable electronic storage media (floppy disks, CD’s, DVD’s, USB drives, flash drives, Zip disks,

etc.) are evolving to where they can store an enormous amount of data on a very small device.  This
presents a unique challenge to organizations as the devices are difficult to secure.  In order to protect
our valuable information; it is important that users of electronic storage media follow these rules of
use:

7.1 Confidential / sensitive information shall not be saved onto removable electronic media 
without approval from the IS manager.  If approved, the information must be encrypted prior 
to being saved onto removable electronic media. 

7.2 Removable media that contains (or previously contained) confidential / sensitive information 
shall be provided to the IS department to ensure that it has been “wiped” securely prior to 
reuse and/or disposal. 

7.3 Removable media that contains (or previously contained) confidential / sensitive information 
shall not be shared with individuals that do not have a “need-to-know” of the information. 

7.4 Removable media that contains (or previously contained) confidential / sensitive information 
shall be kept physically secure (in a locked cabinet and/or office) when not in use. SAMPLE



Enforcement: 

Violations of this policy may result in disciplinary action.  Depending on the severity or frequency of 

the violations, this could include: 

1. Counseling statements for policy violations.
2. A suspension / termination of Internet or email privileges.  This could then result in a

position / function reassignment, and the employee’s compensation package may be
affected.

3. A termination of employment.
4. Personal liability under applicable local, state, or international laws.

Internal audits will be completed upon the request of management.  It will investigate any breach of 
this policy and any enforcement will follow regular personnel procedures. 

Standard Definitions: 

Information Resources: 
Any and all computer printouts, online display devices, magnetic storage media, and all computer-
related activities involving any device capable of receiving email, browsing Web sites, or otherwise 
capable of receiving, storing, managing, or transmitting electronic data including, but not limited to, 
mainframes, servers, personal computers, notebook computers, hand-held computers, personal digital 
assistant (PDA), pagers, distributed processing systems, telecommunication resources including cell 

phones and voice mail systems, network environments, telephones, fax machines, printers and service 
bureaus. Additionally, it is the procedures, equipment, facilities, software, and data that are designed, 
built, operated, and maintained to create, collect, record, process, store, retrieve, display, and 
transmit information. 

Remote Computing Device: 
Any easily portable device that is capable of receiving and/or transmitting data to and from City 

information resources. These include, but are not limited to, notebook computers, handheld 

computers, PDAs, pagers, and cell phones. 

Electronic mail (email): 
Any message, image, form, attachment, data, or other communication sent, received, or stored within 
an electronic mail system. 

Internet:  
A global system inter-connecting computers and computer networks.  The computers and networks 
are owned separately by a host of organizations, government agencies, companies, and colleges.  The 
Internet is the present “information super highway.” 

Intranet:  

A private network for communications and sharing of information that, like the Internet, is based on 
TCP/IP, but is accessible only to authorized users within an organization.  An organization’s intranet is 
usually protected from external access by a firewall. 

World Wide Web:  
A system of Internet hosts that supports documents formatted in HTML (Hypertext Markup Language) 
which contain links to other documents (hyperlinks) and to audio, video, and graphic images.  Users 

can access the Web with special applications called browsers, such as Netscape Navigator and 
Microsoft Internet Explorer. SAMPLE



From: Karen Kane
To: Town Manager
Cc: Road Commissioner; Treasurer; david; george tsobanakis
Subject: Re: KPB
Date: Wednesday, June 12, 2024 11:42:12 AM
Attachments: image004.png

image002.png
image003.png
image001.png

Thanks, Lindsay. Also, remember that we may be eligible for the $5,000 refund from the state. Once the
pedestrian lights are installed, we can have someone from DOT come inspect the work. Fingers crossed!

I purchased 3 trash cans. I’ll let you know when they’re in and we can have Dave Riley take the old ones. 

Karen

On Tue, Jun 11, 2024 at 10:34 AM Town Manager <townmanager@lyman-me.gov> wrote:

Okay, no worries. It’s on the agenda for the next meeting and the committee can discuss it with the board.

Best regards,

Lindsay Gagne

Town Manager

FOAA officer

11 So. Waterboro Rd Lyman, ME 04002

207-247-0642 

207-499-7562

  townmanager@lyman-me.gov
   lyman-me.gov

Under Maine’s Freedom of Access (“Right to Know”) law, all e-mail and e-mail attachments received or prepared for use in matters
concerning Town business or containing information relating to Town business are likely to be regarded as public records which
may be inspected by any person upon request, unless otherwise made confidential by law. If you have received this message in
error, please notify us immediately by return e-mail. Thank you for your cooperation.

From: Karen Kane <kjkane04@gmail.com> 
Sent: Tuesday, June 11, 2024 10:03 AM
To: Town Manager <townmanager@lyman-me.gov>
Cc: Road Commissioner <roadcommissioner@lyman-me.gov>; david <dm@davidmaynesstudio.com>; george
tsobanakis <gtscapes@outlook.com>

ITEM #6: (a.) Kennebunk Pond Committee

mailto:kjkane04@gmail.com
mailto:townmanager@lyman-me.gov
mailto:roadcommissioner@lyman-me.gov
mailto:treasurer@lyman-me.gov
mailto:dm@davidmaynesstudio.com
mailto:gtscapes@outlook.com
mailto:townmanager@lyman-me.gov
https://www.google.com/maps/search/11+So.+Waterboro+Rd%0D%0A+Lyman,+ME+04002?entry=gmail&source=g
mailto:townmanager@lyman-me.gov
https://lyman-me.gov/
mailto:kjkane04@gmail.com
mailto:townmanager@lyman-me.gov
mailto:roadcommissioner@lyman-me.gov
mailto:dm@davidmaynesstudio.com
mailto:gtscapes@outlook.com






Subject: Re: KPB

I don’t feel qualified to explain what needs to be done, nor do we have all the parts. The town got these lights
from the state. Perhaps someone from the town can reach out to Maine DOT. 

Karen

On Tue, Jun 11, 2024 at 9:47 AM Town Manager <townmanager@lyman-me.gov> wrote:

At this point, even if we had all the components for the pedestrian sigs, we’d still need an electrician to set up the
electrical functions and we didn’t put aside ARPA funds for that piece of it. I think we need to get confirmation
from the Select Board if they feel comfortable taking money out of Capital Improvement. If you want to reach out
to some vendors and get some quotes, you’re more than welcome to.

Lindsay Gagne

Town Manager

FOAA officer

11 So. Waterboro Rd Lyman, ME 04002

207-247-0642 

207-499-7562

  townmanager@lyman-me.gov
   lyman-me.gov

Under Maine’s Freedom of Access (“Right to Know”) law, all e-mail and e-mail attachments received or prepared for use in matters
concerning Town business or containing information relating to Town business are likely to be regarded as public records which
may be inspected by any person upon request, unless otherwise made confidential by law. If you have received this message in
error, please notify us immediately by return e-mail. Thank you for your cooperation.

From: Karen Kane <kjkane04@gmail.com> 
Sent: Tuesday, June 11, 2024 9:29 AM
To: Town Manager <townmanager@lyman-me.gov>
Cc: Road Commissioner <roadcommissioner@lyman-me.gov>; david <dm@davidmaynesstudio.com>; george
tsobanakis <gtscapes@outlook.com>
Subject: Re: KPB

mailto:townmanager@lyman-me.gov
https://www.google.com/maps/search/11+So.+Waterboro+Rd%0D%0A+Lyman,+ME+04002?entry=gmail&source=g
mailto:townmanager@lyman-me.gov
https://lyman-me.gov/
mailto:kjkane04@gmail.com
mailto:townmanager@lyman-me.gov
mailto:roadcommissioner@lyman-me.gov
mailto:dm@davidmaynesstudio.com
mailto:gtscapes@outlook.com


Sounds good. You’re right, all the assembly needs to be done before George can install. Can you get an
estimate for electrician? 

Thanks! 

On Tue, Jun 11, 2024 at 8:59 AM Town Manager <townmanager@lyman-me.gov> wrote:

Hi Karen,

Thank you for all your help with this. Everything looks amazing over there!

I can help with ordering some signage. I also received the keys for the gate boxes and a copy of the instructions
for the timer.

Unfortunately, this is true we didn’t seem to receive all the components for the pedestrian signs. We also need
an electrician to wire everything together as I am told. When we went out to bid the contractor put in $1,250 for
each side for the installation of the sign, but I don’t believe this includes wiring and setting up the solar
equipment. We don’t have funding available for an electrician and you may need to bring that to the board to
consider.

The crosswalk comes out of our striping funds. The road commissioner would be ablet o schedule them to come
out. It also depends on the weather and when the vendor is available to come out to do the striping.

I don’t have anyone available to do the watering. The committee should bring this to the board also.

I’ll put the committee on the agenda for the next Select Board meeting if you want to come out and talk with the
board about wrapping up some of the final ends.

Best regards,

Lindsay Gagne

Town Manager

FOAA officer

11 So. Waterboro Rd Lyman, ME 04002

mailto:townmanager@lyman-me.gov
https://www.google.com/maps/search/11+So.+Waterboro+Rd%0D%0A+Lyman,+ME+04002?entry=gmail&source=g


207-247-0642 

207-499-7562

  townmanager@lyman-me.gov
   lyman-me.gov

Under Maine’s Freedom of Access (“Right to Know”) law, all e-mail and e-mail attachments received or prepared for use in matters
concerning Town business or containing information relating to Town business are likely to be regarded as public records which
may be inspected by any person upon request, unless otherwise made confidential by law. If you have received this message in
error, please notify us immediately by return e-mail. Thank you for your cooperation.

From: Karen Kane <kjkane04@gmail.com> 
Sent: Monday, June 10, 2024 8:24 PM
To: Town Manager <townmanager@lyman-me.gov>
Cc: david <dm@davidmaynesstudio.com>; george tsobanakis <gtscapes@outlook.com>; Road Commissioner
<roadcommissioner@lyman-me.gov>
Subject: KPB

Lindsay,

The KPB committee met with David Maynes and George & Jeannine from GTScapes this afternoon to
review the work that's been completed. 

Remaining: 

Gates: Gates are installed. I'm assuming the key(s) to the gate boxes was brought to the Town Hall.
I hung a few signs indicating the time the entrance gate will open & close, which should suffice
until you receive the new signs.
Pedestrian signs:  not all components are with the signs that we got from the State. There's no post
or materials to secure the sign to the ground. The signs/post also need assembling. We need
someone from the town to secure these materials and put the posts together. GTScapes will lay the
concrete base and secure the post once it's assembled. 
Crosswalk:  The town is responsible for erasing the old crosswalk and putting a new one in.
Plant Watering:  I told them that I expected GTScapes to do the watering, but they pushed back
and said they expected the town to do so. So, while they have been taking care of it, they want the
town to take it over. It will require watering at least twice a week, less if it rains and more if there's
a hot spell. They have an extra tank that they're willing to give to the town and will show someone
how to do the watering. You would need someone with a pickup truck that's able to hold the
weight of a full tank. 

Please let me know if you can handle these things or if I should bring them to the Select Board at next
week's meeting as part of the KPB committee closeout. It's been a pleasure working with everyone on the
committee, the town officials, Dave Maynes, George & Jeannine Tsobanakis on this project and I think
we can all be very proud of the work that has been done and how much nicer the area is.

mailto:townmanager@lyman-me.gov
https://lyman-me.gov/
mailto:kjkane04@gmail.com
mailto:townmanager@lyman-me.gov
mailto:dm@davidmaynesstudio.com
mailto:gtscapes@outlook.com
mailto:roadcommissioner@lyman-me.gov


Thank you,

Karen 



ITEM #6: (b.) Fire Chief Report





ITEM #6: (c.) Planning Board report







ITEM #7: (a.) Field Use Request Form

Lindsay Gagne
Pencil





TOWN OF LYMAN 

Policy on Treasurer’s Disbursement Warrants For Employees Wages And Benefits 

And State Fees Collected By The Town 

____________________________________________________________________________________ 

P a g e  1 | 1 

PURPOSE:  This policy allows designated municipal officers (select board or councilors), acting on behalf of the 

full board of municipal officers, to review, approve, and sign municipal treasurer’s disbursement warrants for 

wages and benefits and state fees collected by the Town.  

This Policy is in addition to, not in lieu of, majority power. Nothing in this policy is intended to replace the 

authority of the full board of municipal officers, acting by a majority vote, to act on any treasurer’s warrant, 

including warrants for wages and benefits and state fees collected by the Town.  

Delegation of authority. Pursuant to 30-A MRSA § 5603 (2)(A)(1), the following authority is granted with respect 

to treasurer’s disbursements warrants for municipal employee wages and benefits and state fees collected by the 

Town only.  

Current municipal officers. The current municipal officers in office at this time of execution of this policy are: 

Ralph Blackington (Chair), Thomas Hatch (Vice Chair), Jessica Picard, Victoria Gavel, Amber Swett 

Any one of the municipal officers named above, acting alone, may review, approve, and sign such warrants.  

Effective Date. This policy becomes effective on the date indicated below. Copies. The Chair of the municipal 

officers will furnish two copies of this policy to the municipal clerk and to the municipal treasurer. If the clerk and 

the treasurer are the same person, a copy should nonetheless be provided to that person in each capacity.  

Lapse. This policy lapses one year after its effective date, if not sooner amended or cancelled. 

Renewal. This policy may be renewed at any time before its lapse. Thereafter, it may be readopted at any time. Any 

renewal is valid for one year from its effective date, unless sooner date of expiration is specified.  

Reminder. If the municipal treasurer is an appointed official, the treasurer shall remind the municipal officers to 

consider renewing this policy annually before it lapses. If the municipal treasurer is an elected official, the treasurer 

is requested to provide such an annual reminder. 

Original. The Chair of the municipal officers will maintain the original of this policy on file unless the municipal 

clerk is an appointed official, in which case the clerk shall maintain it on file, if requested to do so by the Chair.  

Effective:  June 17th, 2024 

______________________________________Jessica Picard 

______________________________________Amber Swett 

______________________________________Victoria Gavel 

______________________________________David Alves 

______________________________________Joseph Wagner 

A Majority of the Board of Selectpersons 

Lyman, Maine 

DRAFT
ITEM #7: (c.) Policy on Dispersements


	SAMPLE Social Media Policy Sample.pdf
	EMPLOYEE ACKNOWLEDGEMENT FORM - Social Media and IS Acceptable Use Agreement - July 30 2013
	SP Employee Use of Social Media Policy
	2006 Information System User Acceptable Use Agreement

	SAMPLE Social Media Policy Sample.pdf
	EMPLOYEE ACKNOWLEDGEMENT FORM - Social Media and IS Acceptable Use Agreement - July 30 2013
	SP Employee Use of Social Media Policy
	2006 Information System User Acceptable Use Agreement




